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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board ofFinance

Town ofBethel Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities the businesstype
activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Bethel

Connecticut as of and for the year ended June 30 2010 which collectively comprise the Townsbasic

financial statements as listed in the table of contents These basic financial statements are the

responsibility of the Townsmanagement Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial

Ilrlr statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the basic financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
c used and the significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall basic financial

statement presentation We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions

h1 our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

respective financial position of the governmental activities the businesstypeactivities each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town ofBethel Connecticut as ofJune 30 2010
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable thereof and the

respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with

r accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated January 27
v 2011 on our consideration of the Townsinternal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations contracts grant agreements and other matters

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal

control over financial reporting or on compliance That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results ofour

audit

The Management Discussion and Analysis Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions

Bethel Retirement System and Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions Bethel Other

Post Employment Benefit Plan on pages 5 through 13 and pages 59 through 62 respectively are not a

required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted

principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the

required supplementary information However we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it

Mem6en of

Leading Edge AIIlance Kreston Intematlonal American Institute of Cartifled PublicAccountants

i1r
AnEqual Opporfunlty Empbysr
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Town ofBethel Connecticut

Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town ofBethel Connecticutsbasic financial statements The introductory section and the

accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules and the statistical section in the

table of contents are presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part of the basic

financial statements The combining fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of

contents have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial

statements and in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly we express
no opinion on them

F

G
l

Farmington Connecticut

w January 27 2011
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SEi Robert V Kozlowski Comptroller

MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE302010

As management of the Town of Bethel we offer readers ofthe Town ofBethelsfinancial statements this narrative

overview and analysis ofthe financial activities ofthe Town for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010

Financial Highliehts

On a governmentwide basis the Townstotal net assets grew by2758726 for the fiscal year3337486
ofwhich was generated by governmental activities and 578760 from businesstypeactivities The most

significant reason for such growth is due to the extent that capital asset activity including assets contributed
exceeded depreciation expense for the governmental activities 153208 and the effect of debt service

principal payments and the refunding ofbonds during the year2374073 Business activities reported a

decrease in net assets of578760 due to the increase in cost ofcontracted services for operation of the sewer

system

The Townscombined net assets total 84395597 at June 30 2010 Of this amount 12232383 is

available unrestricted to finance ongoing programs8122511 in governmental activities and4109872
for business activities

At year end the unreserved undesignated fund balance for the general fund was6444053 or 1052of

total general fund expenditures

The Townstotal longterm debt decreased by1144967 This was due to the scheduled debt service

payments of3479967 offset by the issuance of2710000 of new debt issued for the Sewer Fund

Overview ofthe Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Bethelsbasic financial
statements The Town of Bethels basic financial statements comprise three components 1 governmentwide
financial statements 2 fund financial statements and 3 notes to the basic financial statements This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves

Governmentwide financial statements The governmentwide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town ofBethelsfinances in a manner similar to aprivatesector business

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Townsassets and liabilities with the difference
between the two reported as net assets Over time increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator ofwhether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating

L
Thestatement ofactivities presents information showing how the Townsnet assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs
regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some

items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods eg uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Both of the governmentwide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town ofBethel that are principallysupported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues governmental activities from other functions that are intended ito recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges businesstypeactivities The
governmental activities of the Town include general government public safety health and welfare use publicworks library and education The businesstypeactivities of the Town are for Water Sewer and Transfer Station
operations

Fund financial statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives The Town ofBethel uses fund accountingto ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements All of the funds ofthe Town can be
divided into three categories governmental funds proprietary funds and fiduciary funds

Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as

governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements However unlike the governmentwide
financial statements governmental fund financial statements focus on nearterm inflows and outflows ofspendable
resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year Such information
maybe useful in evaluating aTownsnearterm financing requirements

Because the focus ofgovernmental funds is narrower than that ofthe governmentwide financial statements it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements By doing so readers may better understand
the longterm impact ofthe Townsnearterm financing decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement ofrevenues expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities

The Town maintains 18 individual governmental funds Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement ofrevenues expenditures and changes in fund balances
for the two funds considered to be major funds Data from the other 16 governmental funds are combined into a rr

single aggregated presentation Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in
the form ofcombining statements in Schedules 4 5 of this report

The Town adopts an annual budget for its general fund A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget The basic governmental fund financial statements
can be found on Exhibits C D and F

Proprietary funds The Town ofBethel maintains three enterprise funds Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as businesstypeactivities in the governmentwide financial statements The Town uses

enterprise funds to account for its Water Sewer and Transfer Station operations

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governmentwide financial statements only in more
detail The proprietary fund financial statement provides information for the Water Sewer and Transfer Station
operations Water and Sewer are considered to be major funds of the Town and the Transfer Station a nonmajor
fund

Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
Town Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmentwide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the Townsown programs The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds

Notes to the basic financial statements The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding ofthe data provided in the governmentwideand fund financial statements



MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

i Other information In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Town ofBethelsprogress in funding its obligation to

provide pension benefits to its employees

The combining statements and supplemental schedules referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor

governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions

GovernmentWide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator ofa Towns financial position In the case of

the Town assets exceeded liabilities by84395597 at the close of the fiscal year

Town of Bethel

Summary Statement of Net Assets

June 30 2010 and 2009

Governmental

Activities

Irr

i

2010

BusinessType

Activities

2009 2010 2009

Totals

2010 2009

Current and other assets 15483500 14910268 6245132 7439494 21728632 22349762

Capital assets net 102 875 292 102 756 839 31 977 106 29 167824 134 852398 131924663

TOTAL ASSETS 118 358 792 117 667 107 38 222 238 36 607318 156 581030 154274425

Longterm liabilities outstanding 40166644 40687190 20221836 18863746 60388480 59550936

Other liabilities 7 478 450 9 603 705 4 318 503 3482913 11 796953 21400658

TOTAL LIABILITIES 47 645 094 50 290 895 24 540 339 22346659 72 185433 80951594

Net assets

Invested in capital assets net of

related debt 62262355 59884103 9572027 8535419 71834382 68419522

Restricted 328832 328253 328832 328253

Unrestricted 8 122 511 7 163 856 4 109 872 5 725240 12 232383 12889096

TOTAL NET ASSETS 70 713 698 67 376 212 13 681 899 14260659 84 395597 81636871

The largest portion of the Townsnet assets 851 reflects its investment in capital assets eg land buildings
machinery and equipment infrastructure less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding
The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens consequently these assets are not available for

future spending Although the Townsinvestment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt it should be

noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets

themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities

An additional portion of the Townsnet assets4 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on

how they maybe used The remaining balance ofunrestricted net assets in the amount of12232383 may be used

to meet the Townsongoing obligations to citizens and creditors



MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUEDI

The Townsnet assets increased by2758726 during the current fiscal year This increase is due to the extent
that capital asset activity including assets contributed exceeded depreciation expense for the governmental
activities 153208 and the effect of debt service principal payments and the refunding ofbonds during the year
2374073 and a contribution for the building ofa high school track 642624 This was offset by the business
activities reporting a decrease in net assets of 578760 due to the increase in cost of contracted services for
operation ofthe sewer system

Governmental activities Already noted was the statement ofactivities purpose in presenting information in how
the Townsnet assets changed during the most recent fiscal year For the fiscal year net assets increased
3337486 The increase in assets in governmental activities is related in great part to construction of assets and
accrual accounting for debt service activity rather than accumulation ofcash or other liquid assets The reader
should remember that the basis ofaccounting used in the governmentwide statement ofactivities excludes capital
expenditures while its revenues include general taxes whose primary purpose is for the construction ofthose very
assets or their related debt service

Town of Bethel

Changes inNetAssets

For the Years Ended June 30 2010 and 2009

Governmental BusinessType
Activities Activities Totals

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

REVENUES
Program revenues

Chazges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions
General revenues

Property taxes

Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs
Investment income

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES
General government
Public safety
Public works

Health and welfare
Library
Education
Interest expense
Water department
Sewer department
Transfer station

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS JULY1

NET ASSETS JUNE30

2511914 2022919 3430180 8391861 5942094 10414780
14593517 15215831 14593517 15215831
2060657 4415067 225000 2285657 4415067

49449036 48919291 49449036 48919291

521325 537292 521325 537292
217919 311866 145721 185556 363640 497422
55065 49916 55 065 49 916

69409433 71472182 3800901 8577 417 73 210 334 80 049 599

6668996 7680008 6668996 7680008
6983966 6533552 6983966 6533552
3293443 4103553 3293443 4103553
454253 517223 454253 517223
1381052 1186394 1381052 1186394
46830139 45093618 46830139 45093618

460098 1216231 460098 1216231
1151148 1017085 1151148 1017085
2898833 1920281 2898833 1920281
329680 304 203 329 680 304 203

66071947 66330579 4379 661 3 241 569 70 451 608 69 572 148

3337486 5141603 578760 5335848 2758726 10477451

a

67376212 62234609 14260 659 8 924 811 81 636 871 71 159420

70713698 67376212 13 681 899 14 260 659 84 395 597 81 636 871

8
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MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

jr Governmental Activities Revenues

The significant changes in revenues for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 wereas

follows

Charges for services increased 488995 due to an increase in the ambulance charges and small increases

in general government related fees school lunch revenues and the after school program

Capital grants and contributions decreased by2354410 substantially due to reduction in the amount of

school construction progress payments received as compared to the prior year The project was

substantially completed at the end ofthe prior fiscal year

Governmental Activities Expenses

The significant changes in expenses for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 were as

follows

ii
General government expenses decreased by1011012 due to a decrease in amounts spent for utilities of

approximately 300000 intergovernmental agencies of approximately 175000 and miscellaneous

charges ofapproximately 200000

Public works expenses decreased by 810110 due to decreases in the amount of non capitalized capital
improvements

Education expenses increased by1736521 substantially due to normal budgetary increases for salaries

and benefits

BusinessTyneActivities

Revenues

Charges for services decreased by4961681 due to the sewer assessment billed for the Stony Hill Sewer

project in the prior fiscal year

Capital grants and contributions increased by 225000 due to the receipt of a STEAP grant which was

used toward the repaving of the roads that were affected by the Stony Hill sewer installation

Expenses

Sewer department expenses increased by978552 due to the increase in costs for the contractual services

for the cost of sewer operations

fw 9



MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED wi

Financial Analysis of the TownsFunds

As noted earlier the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated

legal requirements

Governmental funds The focus of the Townsgovernmental funds is to provide information on nearterm

inflows outflows and balances ofspendable resources Such information is useful in assessing the Towns

financing requirements In particular unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofa Townsnet
resourcesavailable for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year

The combined fund balances of governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 is9415608
representing a reserve for encumbrances in the amount of521093 61987 for longterm receivables and debt
service of 328832 The unreserved undesignated portion consists of the general fund in the amount of

6444053 the special revenue funds of2160918 and the capital projects funds of101275 for a total of

8503696

General Fund

The general fund is the operating fund ofthe Town The fund balance of the general fund increased by 37206
for the current fiscal year Revenues decreased by 823444 led by intergovernmental revenues at1300658
This was due to the ARRA Stabilization monies ECS replacement being recorded and spend in the Education
Grants fund of1163838 Use ofmoney and property decreased 22345 and charges for services increased

by 70575 Property tax revenues increased by 432062

Bonded Projects Fund

The bonded project funds net change in fund balance was an increase of527666 for the fiscal year This is a

result of the receipt ofschool progress payments related to the High School construction project and the transfer
from the general fund for the pay down ofthe bond anticipation notes

Proprietary funds The Townsproprietary funds provide the same information found in the governmentwide
financial statements but in more detail The Townsenterprise funds posted an overall decrease in net assets of

578760 for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 detailed as follows

Water Department

Net assets ofthe water department at the end ofthe year amounted to 675832 a decrease of320047

Sewer Department

Net assets ofthe sewer department at the end ofthe year amounted to13659587 a decrease of148927

Transfer Station

Net assets ofthe transfer station at the end ofthe year amounted to 653520a decrease of109786

10
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MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

General FundBudetaryHighlights

A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 is on Exhibit F A summary

of that schedule follows

Budget Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Property taxes 49225156 49225156 49385189 160033

Intergovernmental Charges for Services

Other and cancellation of encumbrances 10746231 10746231 9574016 1172215

Totals 59971387 59971387 58959205 1012182

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Expenditures 59376221 59376221 58005516 1370705

Transfers out 595166 595166 595166

i1r

Totals 5 7 8799 13 99 135 7 87 58600682 137070
f

s Change in Fund Balance 358523 358523

F The total final budget was not amended from the original approved budget

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

At June 30 2010 the Town ofBethelsinvestment in capital assets in both governmental and businesstype

activities amounted to 134852398 net of depreciation This includes land intangible assets buildings

equipment and infrastructure roads and bridges Capital assets for governmental activities increased by 1

and businesstype capital assets increased by96

The most significant changes included the following

Construction in progress for government activities decreased by 33185870 due substantially to the

completion of construction ofthe high school renovation project and a downtown sidewalk project

For the businesstype activities the construction in progress increased by3177744 due to the continued

construction ofsewer lines

Yr 1



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Caaital Assets and Debt Administration continued
i

ark
Town of Bethel

Capital Assets Net

June 3Q 2010 and 2009 r
a

Governmental Activities BusinessTypeActivities Totals

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land 5206075 5206075 157072 157072 5363147 5 363 147
Construction in progress 163595 33349465 13320043 10142299 13483638 43 491 764
Land improvements 507848 528075 2205 3315 510053 531 390
Intangible assets 128553 7718182 7846735
Buildings 74490190 43581488 627828 672344 75118018 44 253 832
Building improvements 6962838 5943951 341486 8221549 7304324 14165 500
Distribution collection and treatment

Machinery andequi ment 9751 4
9668944 9857759 9668944 9857759 g

p 9 9 1634137 126334 97042 2102283 1731179
Vehicles 3132303 3141836 15012 16444 3147315 3158280
Infrastructure 10307941 9371812 10307941 9371812

TOTAL 102875292 102756839 31977106 29167824 134852398 131924663

Additional information on the Townscapital assets can be found in Note IIIC

Lonsterm Debt

For the year ended June 30 2010 the Townslongterm debt decreased by1144967 mainly due to scheduled
debt service payments offset by additional debt issued in the sewer fund At the end of the current fiscal year
the Town had total bonded and loan debt outstanding of58874898 Ofthis amount 420002 will be funded
from state grants resulting in net outstanding debt in the amount of58454896 which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town ofBethel

TOWN OF BETAEL

OUTSTANDING DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION AND SEWER BONDS AND CLEAN WATER NOTES

a

Governmental BusinessType
Activities Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

General purpose bonds 8777000 10110000 19990000 4850000 28767000 14960000
School bonds 28628000 7590000 28628000 7590000

Sewer and clean water loans 1479898 1959865 1479898 1959865
Bond anticipation notes 22760000 12750000 35510000

tllfi
Total 37405000 40460000 21469898 19559865 58874898 60019865

The Town maintains an AA2 rating from Moodys and an AA from Standard and Poorsand Fitch for n1
general obligation debt

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 2 to 4 z times
total tax collections including interest and lien fees and the tax relief for the elderl freezey grant The current
debt limitation for the Town is 346600331which is significantly in excess of the Towns outstanding general
obligation debt

Additional information on the Towns longterm debt can be found in Note IIIF

12
Iri1



ilrr
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Next Years Budgets and Rates

Town officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2011 budget The Town decided that it was

important to continue the support ofthe school system and adopt a budget designed to promote longterm fiscal

stability In order to meet the objectives ofthe budget the Town recognized the need to continue its pattern of
conservative budgeting while at the same time providing excellent services to our residents and taxpayers

The 2011 general fund budget is 62225789 an increase of376 over the prior year Nontax revenue
remained relatively consistent

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to familiarize citizens taxpayers and customers with the Townsfinances and
to demonstrate the Townsfiscal accountability for its operation Questions concerning this report or request
for additional financial information should be directed to Mr Robert V Kozlowski Comptroller Bethel
Municipal Center 1 School Street Bethel Connecticut 06801 Telephone 203 7948512

Mtr

t
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OFNET ASSETS

r JUNE 30 2010

iia

EXHIBIT A

1 of 2

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESSTYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTNITIES TOTAL

ASSETS
a

L

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Receivables net

Property taxes

Assessments

Intergavemmental

Total receivables net

Other noncurrent assets

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
Land

Construction in progress

Land improvements
Intangible assets

Buildings
Building improvements
Distribution and collection system

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurtent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

4342779 1215736 8858818

5773125 2864597 8637722

663031 663031

168819 168819

104374S 200000 1243745

354658 248519 603177

2927649 2927649
5 164 9928 15092

15 110 151 1779950 16890101

202765 202765

4465182 4465182

10 011 10011

212776 4465182 4677958

160 573 160573

5206075 157072 5363147
163595 13320043 13483638
507848 2205 S 10053

128553 7718182 7846735
74490190 627828 75118018

6962838 341486 7304324
9668944 9668944

1975949 126334 2102283

3132303 15012 3147315
10 307 941 10307941

102875292 31977106 134852398

103 248 641 36442288 139690929

118358792 38222238 156581030

Continued

G

r

The notes to the financial statements arean integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT A

2 of 2
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30 2010

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESSTYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL S

A
LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue

Bond anticipation notes

Bond and notes payable
Capital lease payable
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds and notes payable and related liabilities

Capital lease payable
Compensated absences

Netpension obligation
NetOPEB obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets net of related debt

Restricted for

Debt service

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

1064367 1773908 2838275

285933 61355 347288

261474 159233 420707
879783 15500 895283

2096460 903540 3000000
2420000 1404967 3824967

104660 104660

365773 365773

7478450 4318503 11796953

35548380 20096572 88644952
443437 443437

764514 764514

2370077 79079 2444156
1 040 236 46185 1086421

40166644 20221836 60388480

47645094 24540339 72185433

62262355 9572027 71834382

328832 328832

8122511 4109872 12232383

70713698 13681899 S 84395597

Concluded

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of his statement
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1

EXHIBIT C

1 of 2
i

TOWN OFBETH ONN

BALANCE SHEET

CTI T

GOVERNMENTALFUNDS

JUNE 30 2010

OTHER TOTAL

BONDED GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash 697326 549108 2639692 3886126
Investments 4722270 441586 609269 5773125
Receivables net

Property taxes 908706 908706
Intergovemmental 586600 32829 619429
Other 259310 95348 354658

Due from other funds 2966805 39382 694518 3700705
Other 5164 5164

TOTAL ASSETS 10146181 1030076 4071656 15247913

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable 645504 79265 115353 840122
Accrued payroll 285933 285933
Due to other funds 812102 59898 59801 931801
Deferred and unearned revenue 1375509 302480 1677989
Bond anticipation notes 1616460 480000 2096460

Total Liabilities 3119048 1755623 957634 5832305

Fund Balances

Reserved for

Encumbrances 521093 521093
Receivables 61987 61987
Debt service 328832 328832

Unreserved reported in

General fund 6444053 6444053
Special revenue funds 2160918 2160918
Capital projects funds 725547 624272 101275

Total Fund Balances 7027133 725547 3114022 9415608

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 10146181 1030076 4071656 15247913

Continued

s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNFCTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE

TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30 2010

EXHIBIT C

2of 2

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS EXHIBIT A ARE

DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE ARE AS

FOLLOWS

TOTAL FUND BALANCE EXHIBIT C PAGE 1 9415608

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESOURCES

AND THEREFORE ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS

Beginning capital assets 102756839

Capital assets additions 2113280

I Depreciation expense 1960072

Disposal of capital assets 34755

OTHER LONGTERMASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PAY FORCURRENT PERIOD

EXPENDITURES AND THEREFORE ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS

Property tax interest and lien accrual 187090

Property tax receivable accrual basis change 798206

School building grant receivable 434327

Allowance for doubtful accounts 230000
Other 160573

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST OF

MEDICAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the

t statement of net assets 391153

SOME LIABILITIES INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE

r
CURRENT PERIOD AND THEREFORE ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS

Bond and notes payable 37405000

Premium 1084498

s Deferred charges
a ableital leaseCa

521118
548097

ypp

Compensated absences 1130287
Net pension obligation 2370077
Net OPEB obligation 1040236
Accrued interest payable 261474

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 70713698
r

Concluded

w

The notes to the financial statements are an integralpart of this statement
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EXHIBIT D
TOWN OFBFTHFrON TI 1T

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 302010

OTHER TOTAL
BONDED GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

REVENUES

Property taxes

I t
49385189 49385189

nergovemmental 11350228 576547 4273673 16200448
Charges for services 926843 1585317 2512160
Useof money and property 162763 44961 10195 217919
Contributions

62385 1350595 1412980
Other 46838 8227 55 065 ri

TOTAL REVENUES 61871861 683893 7228007 69783761

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 10355640 88849 10444489
Public safety 4067679 446302 4513981
Public works 2968461 2968461
Health and welfare 295336 295336
Library 737487 174412 91899
Education 38917838 5350256 44268094

Debt service 3897048 33914 127738 4058700
Capital outlay 422479 747049 1169528

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 61239489 456393 6934606 68630488

EXCESS DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 632372 227500 293401 1153273

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Issuance of refunding debt 8425000 8425000
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 9343492 9343492
Bond premium 1045057 1045057
Capital lease 443437 443437
Transfers in 300166 295000 595166
Transfers out 59516b 595 166

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES 595166 300166 865002 570 002

NET CHANGE IN FUNDBALANCES 37206 527666 1158403 1723275
IT

FUND BALANCES JULY 1 2009 6989927 1253213 1955 619 7 692 333

FUND BALANCES JUNE 30 2010 7027133 725547 3114022 9415608

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT E

TOWN OF B TH ONNE TI T
1 of 2

RECONCILIATION OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OFGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JiJNE 3Q 2010

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OFACTIVITIES

EXHIBIT B ARE DUE TO

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS EXHIDITD 723275

Governmental fiznds report capital outlays as expenditures However in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense This is the

amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period

Capital outlay 2i13280
Depreciation expense 1960072

Total 153 208

The neteffect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assetsiesales tradeinsand donations
is to increase net assets In theStatement of Activities only the loin the sale of capital assets is reported
However in the governmental funds the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources Thus the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold

n
Loss on disposal of assets 34788

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds and revenues recognized in the Fund Financial Statements are not recognized in the

Statement of Activities

School building grant receipts 437929
Change in property tax receivable accrual basis change 103852
Change in property tax interest and lien revenue b0251
Change in property tax allowance for doubtful accounts 20000

r Total 374328

The issuance of longterm debtegbonds leases provides current financial resources to governmental funds
while the repayment of the principal of longterm debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds Neither transaction however has any effect on netassets Also governmental funds report the effect

jy of issuance costs premiums discounts and similar items when debt is first issued whereas these amounts are

deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities The details of these differences in the treatment of
longterm debt and related items are as follows

t

Debt issued or incurred
Issuance of refunding bonds 8425000
Capital lease 443437
Bond premium 927733
Deferred charges 521118
Other 70274
Principal repayments

4 General obligation bonds 2705000
Refunded bonds 8775000
Capital lease 98851

Total 2374073
iir

Continued

fr

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT E

2of 2
TOWN OFBETHEi CONNCETICUT

RECONCILIATION OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSTO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Compensated absences 304966
Net pension obligation 767954
Net OPEB obligation 476747
Accrued interest payable 654527

Total 895140

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of medical insurance premiums to individual

departments 391153

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNIv1ENTAL ACTIVITIES EXHIBIT B 3337486

Concluded

i

rl
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ir EXHIBIT F

GENERALFUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

w

VARIANCE
WITH

ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES

Property taxes 49225156 49225156 49385189 160033
Intergovernmental 9570557 9570557 8347216 1223341
Charges for services 932458 932458 926843 561S
Useof money and property 222586 222586 162763 59823
Other 20630 20630 46 838 26208

TOTAL REVENUES 59971387 59971387 58868849 1102538

EXPENDITURES

Current

General govemment
Public safety
Health and welfare

Public works

Library
Education

Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS DEFICIENCY OFREVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Cancellation of prior year encumbrances
Transfers out

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE JULY 1 2009

FUND BALANCE JUNE 30 2010

10636511 10650764 10346459 304305
4097160 4042874 4042874
318899 306402 306402
2865353 2880888 2880888
737618 737012 737012
36903823 36861233 35794833 1066400
3816857 3897 048 3897 048

59 376221 59 376221 58005516 1 370 705

595166 595166 863333 268167

90356 90356
595166 595166 595166

595166 595166 504810 90356

358523 358523

6433450

6791973

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OFHETAEL CONNFCTICLIT

STATEMENT OFNET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30 2010

EXFIIBIT G

BUSINESSTYPEACTTVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NONMAJOR

MAJOR FUNDS FUND INTERNAL

WATER SEWER TRANSFER SERVICE
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT STATION TOTALS FUND

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash
Investments

Receivables net
Assessments

Intergovemmenai
Other

Other assets

Total current assets

Noncutrent assets

Receivables
Assessments

Capital assets net
Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements

Intangible assets

Buildings
Building improvements
Distribution and collection systems
Machinery end equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets net

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILTIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits

Accrued interest payable
Due toother funds

Claims payabie
Uneemed revenue

Bond anticipation notes payable
Bonds notes and loans payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds notes and loans payable and related liabilities

Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation

Total nonctrrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABiLIT1ES

237901 937541 40294 1215736 45b653

2664597 2864597

168819 168819

200000 200000

65102 182725 692 248519

921 9007 9 928

303924 4362 689 40 986 4 707 599 456 653

4465182 446582

24123 132949 187072

63324 13256714 13320043

2205 2205

9340 7708842 7718182

626881 1277 627828

335825 5661 341486

2193345 7475599 9668944

41250 80790 4294 126334
15012 15 012

2682224 29287106 7776 31977106

2682224 33752288 7776 36442288

2 986 148 38114977 46762 41149887 456653

108452 665456 1773908

28818 23612 8925 61388

4492 154741 159233

1591041 686087 650881 2927649
65500

15500 8800

518540 388000 903540
1404967 1404967

2248343 4322833 674976 7246182 65500

20096572 20096572

39540 19770 19769 79079
22433 16 215 7 837 46185

61973 20132887 27306 20221836

2310316 24455340 702282 27467988 65500

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets net ofrelated debt 266684 7397567 7776 9572027

Unrestricted 1490852 6262020 661296 4109872 391153

TOTAL NET ASSETS 675832 13689887 653520 13681899 391183

The notes to he financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
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ExgBITx

STATEMENT OFREVENUES EXPENSESAND CHANGES IN FC1ND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

BUSINESSTYPEACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NONMAJOR

MAJOR FUNDS FUND
INTERNAL

WATER SEWER TRANSFER SERVICE

DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT STATION TOTALS FAD

OPERATING REVENUES 406910

Charges for services 831091 2379195 219894 3430180 1

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services

Repairs and maintenance

Contracted services

Materials and supplies
Utilities

Insurance

Claims incurred

Administration
Depreciation and amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES EXPENSES

Intergovernmental revenue

investment income

Interest expense

NET NONOPERATING REVENUES EXPENSES

NET INCOME LOSS

TOTAL NET ASSETS JULY l 2009

Ir TOTAL NET ASSETS JUNE 30 2010

463857 333894 199927 997678

281524 153298 434822

84 266 1700754 110397 1895417

65177 21686 7467 94330

113308 64397 477 178182

29859 1013479
2278

111151 310963 3174 425288

1149142 2610412 329680 4089234 1015757

318051 231217 109786

238 63517420 825

659054 391153

225000 225000

10 145711 145721

2006 28842 290427

1996 82290 80294

320047 148927 109786 578760 39153

995879 13808514 543734 14260659

675 832 13 659 587 653 520 13681899 391153

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT i

TOWN OFBFTHEL CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30 2010

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NONMAOR

MAJOR FUNDS FUNp INTERNAL

WATER SEWER TRANSFER SERVICE
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT STATION TOTALS FUND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 832026 2636273 300228 S 3768527 1406910

Payments to suppliers 233137 965671 137569 1336377

Payments to employees 433013 316162 183945 93312D

Claims paid 947979

Administration paid 2278

NET CASH PROVIDED BY USEDIN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 165 876 1 354440 21286 1499030 456653

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets 47164 3187406 3234570

Receipts from grants 25000 25000

Bond anticipation notes issued 2710000 2710000

Issuance of debt 3335000 3335000

Principal payments bonds and bond anticipation notes 121000 4182967 4303967

Interest payments 2 004 S15319 S17323

NET CASH PROVIDEDBY USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATEp

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 170168 1815692 1985860

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment income 10 145711 145 721

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 4282 315541 21286 341109 456653

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NLY 12009 242183 4117679 61560 4421442

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS JUNE 30 2010 E 23790 S 3602138 40294 4080333 456653

RECONCILIATION TO EXHIBIT G CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER ABOVE 237901 3802138 40294 4080333 456653

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPORTED AS INVESTMENTS 2664 597 2664597

CASHEXHIBITG 237901 S 937541 40294 1215736 456653

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME LOSS TO NET CASH

PROVIDEDBY USEDIN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating incomeloss 318051 S 231217 109786 659054 391153

Adjustments to reconcile operating income loss to net cash provided
byused in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 111151 310963 3174 425288

increase decrease in

Receivablas 936 257078 256014

Increase decrease in

Accounts and other payablas 81682 535569 4600 612451 65500

Accrued payroll and benefits 9754 8388 18142

Due to other funds 259315 464315 80334 803964

Deferred revenue 6190 6190

Net pension obligation 10329 735 11678 22742

Net OPEB obligation 10761 6609 4304 23674

NET CASH PROVIDED BY USED IN OPERATING ACTIVI7TS 165 876 1354440 S 21286 1499030 456653

Thenotes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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iYr OWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JiJNE 30 2010

EXHIBIT J

PENSION PRIVATE

TRUST PURPOSE AGENCY

FUNDS TRUST FUNDS FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Money market mutual funds

Fixed income mutual funds

Certificates of deposit
Corporate bonds

US Government obligations
US Government agency securities

Common stock

Equity mutual funds

Total investments

Prepaid benefits and fees

Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

29745 360952

617062 99440
6502

951554 1642 519609
4457682
6144334
1406707 147628
4632132
1283402 7054

19492873 262266 519609

308317
16034 142711

19817224 292011 1023272

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

NET ASSETS

1023272

Held in trust for

Employees pension benefits

Individuals

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
AND OTHER PURPOSES

19817224
292011

19817224 292011

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OFBFTHFLCONN CTI TTT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED TUNE 30 20 0

PRIVATE

PENSION PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUND5

ADDITIONS

Contributions

Employer 1555777
Plan members 453039
Private contributions

46805

Total contributions
2008816 46805

Investment income loss j
Change in fair value of investments 1168446 19419
Interest and dividends 675805 12380

Total investment income loss 1844251 31799

Less investment expenses 166364

Net investment income loss 1677887 31799

z
i

TOTAL ADDITTON5 3686703 78604

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits
1330913

Administration

Scholarships awarded
41669 705

52909

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
1372582 53614 x

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 2314121 24990

NET ASSETS JULY 1 2009 17503103 267021

NET ASSETS JUNE 30 2010 19817224 292011

t
3

il

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT L

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

HISTORYAND ORGAMZATION

The Town ofBethel was incorporated in 1855 and covers an area of 17 square miles The Town operates
under aSelectmenTownMeeting form of government as prescribed by the Connecticut General Statutes and

its charter which was adopted November 6 1973 The Town provides the following services as authorized

by its charter public safety police and fire public works streets and highways public health and social

services sewers and water a free public library and education encompassing grades PreK12

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

A GovernmentWide and FundFinancial Statements

The governmentwide financial statementsie the statement ofnet assets and the statement of changes
in net assets report information on all ofthe nonfiduciary activities ofthe primary government For the

most part the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements Governmental

activities which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported
separately from businesstype activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for

support

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ofa given function or

segment is offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a

specific function or segment Program revenues include 1 charges to customers or applicants who

purchase use or directly benefit from goods services or privileges provided by a given function or

segment and 2 grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
a

requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues

s

ro riet funds and fiduciSeparate financial statements are provided for governmental funds p p ary ary

funds even though the latter are excluded from the governmentwide financial statements Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in

the fund financial statements

B MeasurementFocus Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The governmentwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial

statements Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for on the accrual basis

of accounting Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is

incurred regardless of the timing related cash flows Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the

year for which they are levied Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all

eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met

28



EXHIBIT L j
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

B Measurement Focus Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both

measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period For this purpose the

Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current

fiscal period Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as under accrual

accounting However debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due

Property taxes licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be

susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period All other

revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town

The Town reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the Townsprimary operating fund It accounts for all financial resources of

the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund

The Bonded Projects Fund accounts for the financial revenues to be used for major capital asset

construction andor purchases

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds

The Water Department Fundaccounts for the activities ofthe Townswater operations

The SewerDepartment Fund accounts for the activities ofthe Townssewer operations

Additionally the Town reports the following fund types

The Internal Service Fund accounts for risk financing activities for prescription benefits

The Hennessey Menegay and Education Scholarship Funds are PrivatePurpose Trust Funds and

are used to account for resources legally held in trust for various scholarships All resources of the

fund including any earnings on invested resources may not be used to support the Towns

activities For the Education Scholarships there is no requirement that any portion of these

resourcesbepreserved as capital

The Pension rust Funds account for the activities of the Bethel Employees Retirement System
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and amounts held for

performance bonds
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EXIIIBTT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

ir

I SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

B Measurement Focus Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation Continued

Privatesector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1 1989

generally are followed in both the governmentwide and enterprise fund financial statements to the

extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance ofthe Governmental Accounting
Standards Board The Town also has the option of following subsequent privatesector guidance for

their governmentwide financial statements and enterprise funds subject to this same limitation The

Town has elected not to follow subsequent privatesector guidance

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmentwide
financial statements Exceptions to this general rule are paymentsinlieu of taxes and other charges
between the Townssewer water and transfer station operations and various other functions of the

Town Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for

m
the various functions concerned

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 charges to customers or applicants for goods

services or privileges provided 2 operating grants and contributions and 3 capital grants and

contributions including special assessments Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues Likewise general revenues include all taxes

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in

connectionwith a proprietary fundsprincipal ongoing operations The principal operating revenues of

the water department enterprise fund sewer department enterprise fund transfer department enterprise
fund and of the Townsinternal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services The

sewer department also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the

cost of connecting new customers to the system Operating expenses for enterprise funds and intemal

service funds include the cost of sales and services administrative expenses and depreciation on

capital assets All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use it is the Townspolicy to use

restricted resources first then unrestricted resources as they are needed

C Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1 Deposits andInvestments

Deposits TheTownscash and cash equivalents consist ofcash on hand demand deposits money

market accounts and shortterm investments with original maturities ofthree months or less from the

date ofacquisition
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

I SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES CONTINUED

C Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity Continued

I Deposits and Investments Continued

Investments In general State ofConnecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of
the United States ofAmerica or United States government sponsored corporations in shares or
other interests in any custodial arrangement pool or noload openend management type
investment company or investment trust as defined in obligations of any state or political
subdivision rated within the top two rating categories ofany nationally recognized rating service or
in obligations of the State ofConnecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating
categories ofany nationally recognized rating service For the capital nonrecurring fund not more
than 31 can be invested in equity securities Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it
was earned

The Townspension funds do not have an investment policy however the Town has agreements
with the investment advisors who manage the investment portfolios and have full authority for the
investment and reinvestment ofpension fund assets

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value State Treasurers Investment Fund is an

investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office ofthe State Treasurer Investments
must be made in instruments authorized by Connecticut General Statutes 327c 327e
Investment guidelines are adopted by the State Treasurer The fair value of the position in the
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares

2 Receivables andPavables

a Inter unds

Activity between funds that are representative of lendingborrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either duetofrom other fundsie the current
portion of interfund loans or advances tofrom other fundsie the noncurrent portion of
interfund loans Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and

businesstype activities are reported in the governmentwide financial statements as internal
balances

b Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the governmentwide financial statements all trade property tax and water and sewer use are
shown net ofan allowance for uncollectibles Allowance percentages range from 3 to 43 of

outstanding receivable balances and are calculated upon prior collection history

In the fund financial statements all property taxes receivable at June 30 which have not been
collected within sixty days of June 30 have been recorded as deferred revenue since they are
not considered to be available to finance expenditures of the current year Taxes collected
during the sixty day period have been recorded as revenue

t
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

C Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity Continued

2 Receivables and Payables Continued

b Property Taxes and Other Receivables Continued

EXHIBIT L

Property taxes are assessed on property as ofOctober 1 Taxes are billed in the following July
and are due in four installments July 1 October 1 January 1 and April 1 Personal property and

motor vehicle taxes are billed in July and are due in one installment July 1Liens are effective

on the assessment date and are continued by filing before the end of the year following the due

date

3 Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property plant equipment and infrastructure assets eg roads
lir bridges sidewalks and similar items are reported in the applicable governmental or businesstype

activities columns in the governmentwide financial statements Capital assets are defined by the

government as assets with an initial individual cost ofmore than5000 for equipment 20000 for

improvements and 100000 for infrastructure and an estimated useful life in excess of two years

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date ofdonation

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed

Interest incurred during the constnzction phase of capital assets of businesstype activities is

included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed The total interest expense

incurred by the water and sewer departments during the current fiscal year was 2006 and

288421 respectively None ofthis amount was capitalized

Property plant and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straightline method over the

following estimated useful lives

Assets Years

Buildings 5075

rr Building improvements 50

Land improvements 50

Roads 75

Bridges 50

Sewer plant 50

Sewer lines 4050

Water lines and pumping stations 50100

Vehicles 725

Equipment 1025

Intangible assets 1575
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EXIIIBTT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

C Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity Continued

4 Comyensated Absences

All employees except those specified below are granted vacation and sick time based upon

contractual provisions At anniversary year end unused vacation and sick time do not accumulate or

vest therefore in the event oftermination or retirement employees are not compensated for unused

vacation and sick time

The Board of Education employees are paid vacation on a fiscal year basis therefore unused

vacation lapses at June 30 The Town employees are paid vacation on an anniversary date basis

therefore a liability for unused vacation has been recorded The liability for compensated absences

has also been recorded in the enterprise funds financial statements as a current liability

Certified employees at the Board ofEducation may accumulate up to 150 days ofunused sick time

Only upon retirement are they entitled to receive 50 reimbursement Retirement amounts are

included in the current year budget to reimburse current year retirees

S Lon2Term Obligations

In the governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial

statements longterm debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the

applicable governmental activities businesstypeactivities or proprietary fund type statement ofnet

assets Bond premiums and discounts as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the

life of the bonds using the effective interest method Bonds payable are reported net of the

applicable bond premium or discount Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and

amortized over the term ofthe related debt

In the fund financial statements governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts

as well as bond issuance costs during the current period The face amount ofdebt issued is reported
as other financing sources Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses Issuance costs

whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt service

expenditures

6 FundEauity and NetAssets

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts

that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a

specific purpose Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are

subject to change

In the governmentwide financial statements net assets are classified into the following categories

Invested inCatal Assets Net ofRelated Debt

E

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net ofonly the debt applicable to

the acquisition or construction of these assets Debt issued fornoncapitalpurpose is excluded
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

I SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES CONTINUED

C Assets Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity Continued

6 FundEquity andNetAssets Continued

Restricted Net Assets

EXHIBIT L

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties creditors grantors
contributors or taws and regulations

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets ofthe Town which are not restricted

7 Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States ofAmerica requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets

and liabilities and reported revenues expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year

8 Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for the internal service fund and

the individual enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding
of the changes in the financial position and operations of these funds Also certain amounts

presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current

years presentation

II STEWARDSHIP COMPLIANCE ANDACCOUNTABILITY

A Budeets andBudetaryAccountin

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the general
fund financial statements

Yr 1 In April the Board of Finance submits to a public hearing at which taxpayer comments are

obtained the proposed operating budget ofthe general fund the only fund for which a legal budget
is adopted for the year commencing July 1 The budget which is prepared by function and

department includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them

2 The Board ofFinance submits its proposed budget to the annual Town Meeting which is held on

one of the first seven days in May Those in attendance at the annual Town Meeting may by
majority vote decrease any appropriations or approve the appropriations as presented
Appropriations may not be increased The final budget is then automatically refereed to a machine

vote for approval The date of the machine vote is also established by the annual Town Meeting
which must be held not less than seven nor more than fourteen days from the date of the annual

Town Meeting Those citizens registered to vote or who have property assessments in excess of

1000 are eligible to vote
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

li STEWARDSHIP COMPLL4NCEAND ACCOUNTABILITY CONTINUED

A Budgets and Budeetarv Accountine Continued

The Board ofFinance in accordance with the provisions ofthe Charter and the Connecticut General

Statutes is authorized to transfer unexpended balances from one appropriation to another with the

exception of the wage contingency account Authority to transfer budgeted funds is vested in the

Comptroller for settlement of union contracts and general salary increases approved by the First

Selectman only Management may not authorize any additional appropriations All additional

appropriations less than10000 require Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance approval Those

in excess of10000 require full legislative approval Town Meeting During the year there were

no additional appropriations

4 Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year

The legal level ofcontrol the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations is at the

department level

6 The Board of Education which is not a separate legal entity but a function of the Town is

authorized under State law to make any transfers required withintheir budget at their discretion

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the

year in which the purchase order contract or other commitment is issued and accordingly
encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported in budgetary reports Exhibit F as expenditures
in the current year Generally aside from the Capital Projects Fund all unencumbered

appropriations lapse at year end Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion
ofapplicable projects even when projects extend more than one fiscal year

B Budget GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues expenditures and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
byGAAP Exhibit D and budgetary requirements Exhibit F is as follows

FUND

REVENUES EXPENDITURES BALANCE

BALANCE BUDGETARY BASIS EXHIBIT F
JUNE30 2010

Encumbrances outstanding at June 30 2009

liquidated during the year ended June 30 2010

Encumbrances outstanding at June 30 2009 and 2010

Encumbrances outstanding at June 30 2010 chazged to

budgetary expenditures

Accrued payroll

State Teachers Retirementonbehalfpayment

BALANCE GAAP BASIS EXHIBIT D JUNE 30 2010

58868849 58005516 6791973

643242

42320

478773 478773

66492 285933

3003012 3003012

J
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

II STEWARDSHIP COMPLL9NCE ANDACCOUNTABILITY CONTINUED

C Donor Restricted Endowments

The Town has received certain endowments for various scholarship purposes The amounts are
reflected in net assets as restricted for endowments Investment income including appreciation of
8375 for the Hennessy Scholarship fund 47628 for the Menegay Scholazship fund and 0 for the
Education Scholarship fund is approved for expenditure by the individual Boards of the benefiting

r activities

D Cauital Proiects Authorizations

The following is a summary of certain projects recorded in the Bonded Projects Fund at June 30 2010

PROJECT CUMULATIVE PROJECT
Y PROJECT NAME AUTHORIZATION EXPENDITURES BALANCE

High School Renovation Project 32338000 31664155 67 845

E Deficit FundBalance

The following individual funds had a deficit fund balance at June 30 2010

Small Cities Program 8507
Paramedic Intercept 32009

The deficit should be reduced in future yeazs as amounts are received for charges for services

III DETAILED NOTES

A Cash and Investments

Deposits Custodial Credit Risk Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure the
Townsdeposits may not be returned to it The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk As of June 30 2010 9237608 of the Townsbank balance of 14567484 including

F certificates ofdeposit and money market accounts was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows
l

Uninsured and uncollateralized 8348416
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging banks

trust department not in the Townsname 889192

Total amount subject to custodial credit risk 9237608i
r

On October 3 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 increased the insurance
coverage offered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC from 100000 to 250000
per depositor This limit is anticipated to return to 100000 after December 31 2013 Additionally

6r under the FDICs Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program TAG amounts held in noninterest
bearing transaction accounts at participating institutions are fully guaranteed by the FDIC through
December 31 2010 Participation in the TAG program by a financial institution is optional and

Iw therefore not all financial institutions currently participate in the program This guarantee is
anticipated to be reduced to the 250000 limit on January 1 2011 and the 100000 limit on

January 1 2014 The Town had amounts in excess of 250000 in a single bank during the year
Amounts over 250000 are not insured by the FDIC These balances fluctuate during the year and
can exceed this 250000 limit Management regularly monitors the financial institution together
with its cash balances and tries to keep this potential risk to aminimumr
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EXHHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

A Cash and Investments Continued

At June 30 2010 the Townsinvestments including restricted investments consisted ofthe following

INVESTMENT MATURITIES IN YEARS

TYPE OF FAIR LESS 15 510 OVER

INVESTMENT VALUE NA THAN 1 YEARS YEAR 10

Mutual Funds

Equity Mutual Funds 1290455 1290455
Fixed Income Mutual Funds 6502 6502

Money Market Mutual Funds 716502 716502
Certificates of Deposit 1801151 1801151
Bank Money Market Accounts 5817691 5817691
US Government Obligations 8636020 307545 3935805 3964742 427928
US Govemment Agency Securities 1554335 1061079 345628 147628
Common Stock 4632132 4632132

Corporate Bonds 4 457 682 2 060 421 2 397 261

TOTAL 289470 5922587 9710470 6341854 6362003 S 575556

Interest rate risk The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities

as a means ofmanaging its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates

Credit risk The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit

riskother than State Statues governing investments in obligations ofany State or political subdivision or

in obligations ofthe State ofConnecticut or political subdivision

The Townsinvestments subject to credit risk had average ratings as follows by Standard Poors

FDCED MONEY US

INCOME MARKET US GOVERNMENT

MUTUAL MUTUAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY CORPORATE

AVERAGE RATING FUND FUND OBLIGATIONS SECURITIES BONDS

AAA 8636020 1554335 691197
AA 716502 1756277
A 444458
BBB 1565750
Unrated 6 502

TOTAL 6 502 716 502 8 636020 1554335 4457682

Custodial credit risk Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty
the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the

possession ofan outside party
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

A Cash and Investments Continued

The Town has certain investments which are covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation
SIPC up to 500000 including 100000 of cash from sale or for purchase of investments but not

cash held solely for the purpose of earning interest SIPC protects securities such as notes stocks
bonds debentures certificates ofdeposit and money funds

The Townsinvestments are subject to custodial credit riskas follows

USGovernment Obligations
USGovernment Agency Securities

Common Stock

Corporate Bonds

TOTAL

B Receivables

AMOUNT

LESS SUBJECT TO

INSURED CUSTODIAL

TOTAL AMOUNTS CREDIT RISK

8636020 1000000 7636020
1554335 647628 906707
4632132 4632132
4457682 4457682

19280169 1647628 17632541

Receivables as ofyear end for the Townsgovernmentwide financial statements by type including the

applicable allowances for uncollectibles are as follows

PROPERTY TAXES

ir

Current Portion

Longterm Portion

Less Allowance for Uncollectibles

NetLongterm Portion

Total Receivable

INTEREST

TAXES LIEN FEES TOTAL

569486 93545 663031

339220 93545 432765

150000 80000 230000

189220 13545 202765

758 706 107090 865796

USE CHARGE RECENABLES

WATER SEWER

DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT

Gross Receivable 67102 187725

W

Less Allowance for Uncollectibles

Net Receivable

2000 5000

65102 182725
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

B Receivables Continued

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet earned At the end
ofthe current fiscal year the various components ofdeferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in
the governmental funds were as follows

UNAVAILABLE UNEARNED TOTAL

Delinquent property taxes receivable 789772 789772
Advance taxes collections 467567 467467
Notes receivable 8434 8434
Charges for services 109736 109736
Grant draw downs prior to meeting all eligibility requirements 302480 302 480

Totals 798206 879783 1677989

C Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30 2010 wasas follows

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1 2009 INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30 2010

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land 5206075 5206075
Construction in progress 33349465 340044 33 525 914 163 595
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 38 555 540 340 044 33 525 914 5 369 670

Capital Assets being Depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
Buildings improvements
Machinery and equipment
Intangible assets

Vehicles

Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

767768 11475 779243
57151719 31910925 89062644
9215503 1346567 10562070
3106314 566527 14600 3658241

131849 131849
4787174 232697 67321 4952550
11867328 1099110 12 966 438

86895806 35299150 81921 122113035

Total Capital Assets 125451346 35639194 33607 835 127 482 705

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Buildings improvements
Machinery and equipment
Intangible assets

Vehicles

Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

239693 31702 271395
13570231 1002223 14572454
3271552 327680 3599232
1472177 223255 13140 1682292

3296 3296
1645338 208935 34026 1820247
2495516 162981 2 658 497
22694507 1960072 47 166 24 607 413

Total Capital Assets being Depreciatednet 64201299 33339078 34 755 97 505 622

Governmental Activities Capital Assets net 102756839 33679122 60669 102 875 9

1
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

C Cauital Assets Continued

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1 2009 INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30 2010

BusinessTvve Activities

Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Canital Assets beine Depreciated

Land improvements
Intangible assets

Buildings
Buildings improvements
Distribution and collections system

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation for

Land improvements
Intangible assets

Buitdings
Buildings improvements
Distribution and collections system

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated net

157072 157072
10 142 299 3 177 744 13 320 043

10299371 3177744 13477115

14595 14595
12125200 19324 12144524
3348380 3348380

982382 982382
14286561 14286561

893442 37502 931444
141084 141084

31792144 56826 31848970

42 091 515 3234570 45326085

11280 1110 12390
4267677 162313 4429990
2672388 44516 2720552

622004 18892 640896

4428802 188815 4617617
796900 8210 805110
124 640 1 432 126 072

1292369I 425288 13348979

18868453 3684621 18499991

BusinessTypeCapital Assets net 29167 824 2809282 31977106

Depreciation expense was charged to functionsprograms of the Town as follows

Governmental Activities
General government 127141
Public safety 275232
Public works 284822
Libraries 144796

Parks and recreation 17495
Education 1110586

Total Depreciation Expense Governmental Activities

Depreciationamortization expense was charged to functionsprograms of the Town as follows

BusinessTweActivities

Water 111151
Sewer 310963
Transfer station 3174

Total DepreciationAmortization Expense BusinessTypeActivities 425288

is

Construction Commitments

The Town has substantially completed the active major construction projects and other projects as of

June 30 2010
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTE5 TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CON7INIIED

D Interfund Accounts

1 Interfund Payables andReceivables

A summary of interfund balances as ofJune 30 2010 is as follows

coRRESPONDnvG

FUND DUE FROM DUE TO

MAJOR FUNDS
GENERAL FUND

Historic Documents NA 10747

Water Department NA 1591041

Sewer Department NA 686057
Transfer Station NA 634517
Bonded Projects NA 39382

Small Cities NA 1099

Health Department Grants NA 31533

Public Safety Grants

Education Grants

NA
NA

23077
523321

High School Security N1A 23982

Railroad Station NA 300

Land Acquisition NA 17349

Paramedic Intercept NA 50000

Capital and Nonrecurring NA 3791

Performance Bonds NA 142711

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 2966805 812102

MA70R BONDEDPROJECTS

Bonded Projects Bond Issue CapitalNonrecurring 59898

Bonded Projects Bond Clearing Account General Fund 39382

TOTAL MAJOR BONDEDPROJETS 39382 59898

MAJOR WATER
y

Water Department General Fund 1591041

MAJOR SEWER F
5ewerDeparhnent General Fund 686057

NONMAJOR FUNDS
Small Cities General Fund 1099

Health Deparhrtent Grants General Fund 31533
Public Safety Grants Genera Fund 23077

Education Grants General Fund 547303 300

Railroad Station General Fund 4611

Railroad Station Capital Nonrecurring
Land Acquisition General Fund 17349
Paramedic Intercept General Fund 50000
Historic Documents General Fund 10747 t

1Capital Nonrecurring Railroad Station 4611

Capital Nonrecurring BondedProjects 59898

Capital Nonrecurring General Fund 3791
si

TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS 694518 59801 11i
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

D Interfund Accounts Continued

1 InterfundPayables andReceivables Continued

EXHIBIT L

CORRESPONDING

FUND DUE FROM DUE TO

NONMAJOR TRANSFER STATION

Transfer Station Town Employee Pension Fund 16034

Transfer Station General Fund 634517

TOTALNONMAJOR TRANSFER STATION 650551

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Town Employee Pension Fund Transfer Station 16034

Performance Bonds General Fund 142711

TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS 58745

GRAND TOTAL 9450 3859450

All Interfund balances result from time lag between the dates payments occur between funds for

shortterm internal financing

2 Interfund Transfers

A summary of Interfund transfers as of June 30 2010 is as follows

CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS

FUND IN OUT

GENERAL FUND

Capital Nonrecurring NA 295000

Bonded Projects NA 300166

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 595166

MAJOR BONDEDPROJECTS

Bond Issue 2006 General Fund 300166

NONMAJOR FUNDS

Capital Nonrecurring General Fund 295 000

GRAND TOTAL 595166 595166

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various programs and

activities in other funds

1r
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

E ShortTerm Obligations Bond Anticipation Notes

The Town uses bond anticipation notes BANS during the construction period ofvarious public projects

prior to the issuance of the bonds at the completion oftheproject

Shortterm obligation activity for the year ended June 30 2010 was as follows

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1 JUNE 30
PROJECT 2009 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 2010

General Purpose 354000 178000 176000

High School Renovation 235834 654166 240000 650000

Berry School BuildingProject 335000 335000
Fire Truck 457730 92000 365730
General Purpose Accounting Software 119896 30166 89730
Bethel Firehouse Renovations 550 000 70000 480000

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 202460 654166 S 610166 S 2096460

The BANs carry an interest rateof15and mature in November 2010

In November 2010 the Town issued2600000 in bond anticipation notes at an interest rate of125

These bond anticipation notes were issued for the projects noted above

BUSINESSTYPEACTIVITIES

The Town has issued bond anticipation notes BANS for certain enterprise fund projects

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1 JUNE 30
PROJECT 2009 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 2010

Water Department 636540 121000 515540
Sewer Department 436 000 2 710 000 2 758 000 388 000

TOTAL BUSINESSTYPEACTMTIES 1072540 2710000 2879000 S 903540

The bond anticipation notes carry an interest rate of15and mature in November 2010

r
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

F Chanties inLoneTermOblieations

1 Summary ofChanges

The following is a summary of changes in longterm obligations during the fiscal year

DATE DATE BALANCE BALANCE

ORIGINAL OF OF INTEREST JULY 1 JUNE 30 CURRENT

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE MATURITY RATE 2009 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS REFUNDED 2010 PORTION

GENERALPURPOSE

Improvement bonds 3925000 070198 070113400600 1300000 260000 1040000 260000

Improvement bonds 3041000 110102 110122300500 2200000 150000 2050000

s Improvement bonds 9415000 110104 050120275475 6610000 700000 1950000 3960000 670000

Refunding bonds 1785000 042810 171520400500 1785000 1785000

1 992 000Refunding bonds 042810 071520300500 1 992 000 1 992 000 81 000

Total General Purpose 10 110 000 3 777 000 1 110 000 4 000 000 8 777 000 1 011 000

SCHOOL

Improvement bonds 15960000 021591 021511600800 2440000 1220000 1220000 1220000

Improvement bonds 7259000 110102 110122300500 5150000 375000 4775000

Improvement bonds 22760000 111509 111534225425 22760000 22760000

r1r 648Refunding bonds 4 000 042810 071520300500 4 648 000 4 648 000 189 000

Total School 30 350 000 4 648 000 1595 000 4 775 000 28 628 000 1 409 000

TOTAL BONDS 40460000 8425000 2705000 8775000 37405000

PREMIUM 156765 1045057 117324 1084498

DEFERRED CHARGES 568 492 47 374 521118

TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES AND RELATED LIABILITIES 40 616 765 8 901 S65 2 774 950 8 775 000 37968380 2420000

CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE 203 511 443 437 98 851 548 097 104 660

COMPENSATED ABSENCE5 825 321 1 468 490 1 163 524 1130287 365773

r NET PENSION OBLIGATION 1 602 123 2 716 506 1 948 552 2 370 077

NET OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATION 563 489 947 833 471 086 1040236

TOTAL LONGTERM OBLIGATIONS llX09 R 14477831 6456963 8775000 43057077 2890433

All longterm liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund

r
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

F Changes inLongTerm061iations Continued

1 Summary ofChanges Continued

ENTERPRISE FUNDS1

DATE DATE BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL OF OF INTEREST JULY 1 JUNE 30 CURRENT

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE MArl ITY ATE 2009 ADDITIONS DEDUCTION RE DED 2010 PORTION

LONGTERM OBLIGATIONS

General Obligation
Bonds 2430000 070195 070115 4759 900000 120000 650000 130000 130000

General Obligation r
Bonds 4300000 080106 080131 412555 3950000 175000 3775000 175000 W

General Obligation
Bonds 15460000 111509 111534 22525 12750000 2710000 15460000 620000

Refunding Bonds 625000 042810 071520 300500 625000 625 000

TOTAL BONDS 17600000 3335000 295000 650000 19990000 925000

Clean Water Loan

CWF1032 9159368 072994 072994 200 959865 479967 1 479 898 479 967
1

PREMIUM 78660 6555 72105

DEFERRED CHARGES 441431 36791 40 464

TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES AND RELATED LIABILITIES 19559865 3369517 777843 650000 21501539 1404967

NET PENSION OBLIGATION 56337 83006 60264 79079

NET OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATION 22 511 42 588 18 914 46 185

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 19638713 3495111 857021 6 0000 21626803 X1404967

1 The sewer improvement bonds are supported by means of an assessment program The clean water loans will be

supported by sewer use charges All obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the Town

rrr

45



c EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

F Changes inLoneTerm OblisYations Continued

1 Summary ofChanges Continued

The following is a summary of amounts to be provided by the State of Connecticut for the

retirement of school bonds and of debt maturities

DEBT MATURITIES

YEAR SCHOOL BUILDING GENERAL
ENDING GRANTS PURPOSE SEWER SEWER SEWER

JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST BONDS INTEREST NOTES BONDS INTEREST

2011 410624 13690 2420000 1339499 479967 925000 736972
2012 4689 422 2420000 1322425 479967 895000 710896

2013 4689 213 2390000 1233906 479967 930000 681671

2014 2045000 1150606 39997 925000 646571

2015 1775000 1085638 925000 613121

2016 1780000 1025826 925000 582127

2017 1785000 960450 795000 552840
2018 1790000 892451 790000 527014

2019 1795000 821826 790000 501381

2020 1795000 750482 790000 475254

2021 1800000 679450 790000 448267

2022 1800400 60576I 790000 418525

2023 1800000 528511 790000 386351

2024 1275000 464183 790000 354092

2025 1275000 412574 790000 32812

2026 950000 367668 790000 289447

2027 950000 329668 790000 256997

2028 945000 291768 785000 224647

2029 945000 253968 785000 192397

2030 945000 216168 785000 160147

2031 945000 178368 785000 127812

2032 945000 139978 785000 95007
2033 945000 100407 615000 65344

2034 945000 60241 615000 39207

2035 945 000 20 081 615 000 13 069

TOTALS 42102 5 14 3lS S 4UJ UUU 11s1yu a iyi7o7oa

The State of Connecticut provides reimbursement for construction of schools based upon

demographics of the Town

2 Statutory Debt Limitations

The Townsindebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by Connecticut

General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule

NET

CATEGORY DEBT LIMIT INDEBTEDNESS BALANCE

General purpose 111407249 9888460 101518789
Schools 222814499 29192998 193621501
Sewers 185678749 185678749
Urban renewal 160921582 160921582
Pension deficit 148542999 148542999

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from

taxation 346600331
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

III DETAILED NOTES CONTINUED

F Changes inLongTermObligations Continued

2 Statutory DebtLimitations Continued

The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of bonds
authorized and unissued against which bond anticipation notes are issued and outstanding School

building grants receivable of 420002 for bond principal is reflected as deductions in the

computation ofnet indebtedness

3 Capital Leases

At June 30 2010 the Town is committed under a capital lease for computers This lease agreement
qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes title transfers at the end of the lease term and
therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the
date oftheir inception

Computers totaling1360045 are recorded under capital leases as ofJune 30 2010

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under this capital lease and the

present value of the netminimum lease payments as of June 30 2010

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30

2011 231079
2012 126419
2013 126419
2014 126420

Less amount representing interest 62240

Present value ofminimum lease payments 548Q7

4 AuthorizedUnissued Bonds

The amounts ofauthorized unissued bonds are as follows

General Purpose 19798249
Schools 7006000
Sewer Enterprise Fund 7519896
Water Enterprise Fund 1449000

TOTAL 35773145

S Current Year Advance Refunding

In April 2010 the Town issued8425000 of general obligation refunding bonds and 625000 of
sewer refunding bonds with an average interest rate of4805 These refunding bonds were issued
to advance refund and defease bonds issued in 1995 2002 and 2004 The refunding resulted in an

economic gain of361320with a total savings of436285
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

IY OTHER INFORMATION

ir
A Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability police liability Board of

Education legal liability theft or impairment of assets errors and omissions injury to employees and

natural disasters The Town purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss including

blanket and umbrella policies Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past
three years and there have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage from amounts held

in prior year

The Town utilizes a risk management fund the Internal Service Fund to account for and finance its

uninsured risks of loss for pharmacy claims The fund records all claim expenditures and liabilities

when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount ofthat loss can be reasonably estimated

The Board of Education is charged premiums by the Internal Service Fund which are included in

expenditures to cover the estimated cost of claims payment based on historical cost estimates of the

amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims Claims liabilities include an estimate of claims

incurred but not reported and are the Townsbest estimate based on available information

The claims liability reported in the internal service fund is based on the requirements of GASB

Statements No 10 and 30 which require that a liability for estimated claims incurred but not reported be

recorded The amount of claim accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claim which

include past experience data inflation and other future economic and societal factors and incremental

claim adjustment expenses net of estimated subrogation recoveries The claim accrual does not include

other allocated or unallocated claims adjustment expenses

The following is asummary ofchanges in the claims liabilities

CURRENT YEAR

CLAIMS CLAIMS AND

PAYABLE CHANGES IN

JULY 1 ESTIMATES

20092010 1013479

CLAIMS

CLAIMS PAYABLE
PAID JUNE 30

947979 65500

B Commitments and Litigation

Construction and other significant commitments have been reported as reserve for commitments in the

fund equity section of the balance sheet

Amounts received or receivable from Federal and State grantor agencies are subject to audit and

Lr adjustment by grantor agencies Any disallowed claims including amounts already collected may

constitute a liability of the applicable funds The amount if any of expenditures which may be

disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Town expects such amounts if

any to be immaterial

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits and the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable In the opinion of the Town attorney the resolution of these matters will not have a

material adverse effect on the financial condition ofthe Town
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EXIiIBTT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Ii OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans

I Plan Description

Summary

The Town administers two single employer contributory defined benefit pension plans Town of

Bethel and Town ofBethel Police Department The Town plan was adopted in 1968 and revised in

2000 The Police plan was established by a memorandum ofunderstanding effective July 1 1997

The Pension Commission makes recommendations for plan provisions which are approved by the

Board ofFinance Both plans are part ofthe Townsreporting entity and are included in the Towns

financial report as two pension trust funds The plans do not issue separate stand alone financial

reports

2 Summary ofSipniTcant Accountin2Policies andPlan AssetMatters

a Basis ofAccountins

The Townspension trust funds financial statements are prepazed on the accrual basis of

accounting Revenues contributions and investment income are recognized when they are

earned and expenses benefits administration and refunds are recognized when they are due

and payable in accordance with the terms ofthe plan

b Valuation oflnvestments

Investments are valued at fair value Both the Town and Police plan have investments of

greater than 5in Federal National Mortgage Association bonds of726109 and 334970
respectively

3 Classes ofEmployees Covered

As ofJuly 1 2010 the plans membership consists of the following

TOWN POLICE

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 90 8

Terminated employees entitled to benefits but

not yet receiving them 8

Active plan members 143 34

TOTALS 241 4Z

r
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

IY OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans Continued

4 BenefitProvisions

Town

EXHIBIT L

Each employee may enter the plan on the January 1 coincident with or the next following the date of

employment For employees hired on or after January 1 2001 participation in the contributory plan
is mandatory The plan covers substantially all noncertified Board ofEducation and all regular
Town employees except police personnel The Board ofSelectmen upon recommendation from the

Insurance and Pension Committee established benefit provisions and the employee and employer
obligations

Police

Participation of all full time regular police officers is mandatory as ofhire date The benefit was

established by a plan adopted in 2001 The plan contains a cost of living adjustment of 1 per year

Contributions

The Townscontributions are actuarially determined on an annual basis using the frozen initial

liability cost method for the Town plan and the Police plan The Townscontributions were

178 and 255of covered payroll respectively for the Town and Police plans
Administration costs are financed from investment earnings

S Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1 2010 wasas follows

B
ACTUARIALLY ABC

ACCRUED AB OVER UNDER
A LIABILITY OVER AB FUNDED AAL AS

ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL AAL UNDER FUNDED C A PERCENTAGE
VALUATION VALUE OF PROJECTED FUNDED AAL COVERED OF COVERED

DATE ASSETS UNIT CREDIT AAL RATIO PAYROLL PAYROLL

TOWN PLAN

July 1 2010 14418477 25321090 10902613 569 7503503 1453

POLICE PLAN

July 1 2010 5398747 8826293 3427546 612 2180272 1572

Actuarial valuations involve estimates ofthe value ofreported amounts and assumptions about the

probability ofevents far into the future and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual

revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the

future The required schedule offunding progress immediately following the notes to the financial
statements RSI presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits

so



TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

IV OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans Continued

6 Actuarial Assumytions

The information presented as historical trend information was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation as of the date indicated in the tabulation Additional information as of the latest valuation
is as follows

VALUATIONDATE

ACTUARIAL COST METHOD

ASSET VALUATION METHOD

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Investment Rate of Return

PROJECTED SALARY INCREASES
Merit

Inflation

AMORTIZATION METHOD

REMAINING AMORTIZATIONPERIOD

TOWN POLICE

JULY 1 2010 JULY 1 2010

FROZEN FROZEN

INITIAL LIABILITY INITIAL LIABILITY

COST METHOD COST METHOD

FAIR VALUE FAIRVALUE

800

150

150

CLOSED
LEVEL DOLLAR

30 YEARS

21 YEARS

700

250

200

CLOSED
LEVEL DOLLAR

30 YEARS

18 YEARS

7 AnnualPension Cost andNetPension Obligation NPO

The changes in the net pension obligation asset as ofJune 30 2010 were as follows

TOWN POLICE

Annual required contribution 2089781 579929
Interest on net pension obligation 109679 20123

Annual pension cost 2199460 600052
Contribution made 1593424 415392

Change in net pension obligation

Net pension obligation July 1 2009

Net pension obligation June 30 2010

606036 184660

1370987 287473

1 977 023 472133

wli
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
E

IV OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans Continued

8 Three Year Trend Information

ANNUAL NET

PENSION PERCENTAGE PENSION

YEAR COST OF APC OBLIGATION

ENDING APC CONTRIBUTED ASSET

TINE 30

TOWN PLAN

2010 2199460 725 1977023
2009 1811890 876 1370987
2008 1589066 1000 1145423

JUNE 30

POLICE PLAN

2010 600052 692 472133
2009 491658 784 287473
2008 445826 769 191334

itu
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L rj

IV OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans Continued

9 Plan Statements

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30 2010

TOWN TOTAL

EMPLOYEE POLICE PENSION

PENSION PENSION TRUST

FUND FUND FUNDS

ASSETS

Investments

Money market mutual funds

Certificates ofdeposit
Corporate bonds

USGovernment obligations
US Government agency securities
Common stock

Equity mutual funds

421503 195559 617062
911518 40036 951554
3219281 1238401 4457682
4398839 1745495 6144334
1071737 334970 1406707
3221778 1410354 4632132
908484 374918 1283402

Total investments 14153140 5339733 19492873

Prepaid benefits and fees 249303 59014 308317
Due from other funds 16034 16034

TOTAL ASSETS 14418477 5398747 19817224

LIABILITIES

Due to from other funds 4291 4291

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for

Employees pension benefits 14414186 5403038 19817224

Sri
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EXIiIBTT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
frr

IY OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

C Pension Plans Continued

9 Plan Statements Continued

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

h FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

TOTAL

EMPLOYEE POLICE PENSION

PENSION PENSION TRUST

FUND FUND FUNDS

ADDITIONS

Contributions

Employer 1300000 255777 1555777
Plan members 293424 159615 453039

Total Contributions 1593424 415392 2008816

Investment income loss
Change in fair value of investments 731848 436598 1168446
Interest and dividends 489207 186598 675805

Total Investment income loss 1221055 623196 1844251

Less investment expenses 131116 35248 166364

Net Investment income loss 1089939 587948 1677887

TOTAL ADDITIONS 2683363 1003340 3686703

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits 1067846 263067 1330913
Administration 31923 9746 41669

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1099769 272813 1372582

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 1583594 730527 2314121

NET ASSETS JULY 1 2009 12830592 4672511 17503103

NET ASSETS JUNE 30 2010 14414186 5403038 19817224

w
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

IV OTHERINFORMATION CONTINUED

D OtherPostEmuloymentBenefits Plan

1 Plan Description

The Town administers three singleemployer post retirement healthcare plans for the Town Police
and Board of Education for the Town of Bethel Other Post Employment Benefits OPEB The
Town and Police and Fire plans provide medical dental and life insurance benefits for eligible
retirees and their spouses The Board of Education plan provides medical and dental benefits to

eligible retirees and their spouses

2 Classes ofEmployees Covered

As ofJuly 1 2009 for Town Police and Fire and July 1 2009 for Board ofEducation the plans
membership consisted of

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits

Active plan members

TOTAL

3 BenefitProvisions

a BenefitProvisions

BOARD

OF

TOWN POLICE EDUCATION

15 1 55
76 34 258

The Town plan provides for medical dental and life insurance benefits for all eligible Town
Police and Fire retirees and their spouses The Board ofEducation plan provides medical and
dental benefits for all Board ofEducation retirees and their spouses Benefits and contributions
are established by contract and maybe amended by union negotiations

b Employer Contributions

The Townscontributions are actuarially determined on an annual basis using the projected unit
credit method The Town Police and Board of Educations total plan contribution was

490000

a Employee Contributions

There are no employee contributions to the plan

i
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

IV OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

D OtherPostEmployment Benefits Plan Continued

4 Funded Status and Funding Prowess

The funded status of the plan as ofJuly 1 2010 wasas follows

B
ACTUARIALLY ABC

ACCRUED AB OVER UNDER
jp A LIABILITY OVER AB FUNDED AAL AS

ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL AAL UNDER FUNDED C A PERCENTAGE

VALUATION VALUE OF PROJECTED FUNDED AAL COVERED OF COVERED

DATE ASSETS UNIT CREDIT AAL RATIO PAYROLL PAYROLL

TOWN

JULY 1 2009 4144000 4144000 00 NA NA

iii

POLICE

NAlll JULY 1 2009 2994000 2994000 00 NA

BOARD OF EDUCATION

JULY 1 2009 5922000 5922000 00 NA NA

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the

probability ofevents far into the future and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual

revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the

t future The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial

statements RSI presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits

S Actuarial Methods andAssumptions

Projections ofbenefits are based on the substantive plan the plan as understood by the employer
and plan members and include the types ofbenefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of

sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point The projection of

benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects oflegal

or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan
members in the future Actuarial calculations reflect alongterm perspective Consistent with that

perspective actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce

shortterm volatility in actuarially accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets

i

i
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

EXHIBIT L

IV OTHER INFORMATIONCOVTINUED

D OtherPostEmployment Benefits Plan Continued

S Actuarial Methods andAssumptions Continued

The data presented in the schedules of funding progress and schedules of contributions were
determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated Additional information for all
plans as ofthe latest valuation date is as follows

VALUATION DATE July 1 2009
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD Projected Unit Credit
AMORTIZATION METHOD Level Dollar
REMAINING AMORTIZATION PERIOD

Town 30 years closed
Police 30 years closed
Board ofEducation 30 years closed

ASSET VALUATION METHOD Fair Value

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Investment rate ofreturn all plans 40
Healthcare inflation rate

Initial 66
Ultimate 44

6 Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation NOO

The changes in the NOO were as follows

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions made

Change in net OPEB obligation

Net OPEB obligation July 1 2009

Net OPEB obligation June 30 2010

BOARD

OF
TOWN POLICE EDUCATION

328000 318000 342000
7638 175 15627

25 306 31 986 36273

310332 286189 393900

159677 3657 326666

150655 282532 67234

197000 315000 74000

597532 4 4

2
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EXHIBTI L

TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

IV OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUED

D OtherPostEmploymentBenefits Plan Continued

7 Two Year Trend Information

ANNUAL

YEAR OPEB

ENDING COST

JUNE 30 AOC

PERCENTAGE

OF AOC

CONTRIBUTED

NET

OPEB

OBLIGATION

TOWN

2010 310332 515 347655
2009 328000 399 197000

POLICE

2010 286189 I3 597532
2009 318000 9 315000

BOARD OF EDUCATION

2010 393901 829 141234
2009 342000 784 74000

E OnBehalfPayments

The amount of the State Teachers Retirement Plan contribution recognized in the General Fund

intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for contributions made by the State onbehalf of

the Townsteachers was3003012

ti
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Supplemental
Schedules



General
Fund

The general fund is the principal fund ofthe Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town except

those required to be accounted for in another fund The general fund accounts for the normal recurring
activities of the Townie general government public safety public works health social services recreation
education etc These activities are funded principally by property taxes user fees and grants from other

governmental units
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

SCHEDULE 1

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes 48796656 48796656 48911934 115278

Interest and lien fees 257500 257500 336847 79347

Telephone access tax 130000 130000 73989 5601I
PILOT Augustana 16517 16517

PILOT Reynolds Ridge 41 000 41 000 45 902 4 902

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 49225156 49225156 49385189 160033

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

Equal cost sharing 8157837 8157837 6987511 1170326
Transportation 165264 165264 108078 57186
Continuing education 10266 10266 10790 524

Health and weltare 7185 7185 7273 88
Town aid roads 159948 159948 158659 1289

s Boat registration 2411 2411 1235 1176
School building grants 437929 437929 437929
PILOT State owned property 53852 53852 47341 6511
PILOT Augustana 37370 37370

Elderly tax freeze 1106 1106 1106
Elderly home owners exemption 115000 115000 114500 500

Ilrr Disability tax loss 1165 1165 1363 198

Veterans tax relief 6800 6800 7256 456

LOCIP 118327 118327 114416 3911
Mashantucket Pequot fund 88467 88467 42945 45522
PILOT manufacturers 240000 240000 252137 12137
Miscellaneous State revenue 5000 5000 18413 13413

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 9570557 9570557 8347216 1223341

CHARGES FORSERVICES

Canine receipts 27000 27000 2133 24867
Planning and zoning 20000 20000 9032 10968
Zoning board of appeals 3000 3000 2449 551
Recreational programs 304858 304858 219552 85306

Conveyance tax 240000 240000 224529 15471
Recording fees 90000 90000 97731 7731

Police reports 2000 2000 1314 686
Police ofher 8000 8000 3784 4216
Town clerk fees 27000 27000 38131 11131
Library fees 15000 15000 18601 3601

Miscellaneous licenses and permits 189800 189800 306237 116437
Parking fines 5800 5800 3350 2450

t
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 932458 932458 926843 5615

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY

Interest 181000 181000 128193 52807
Property leases 41586 41586 34570 7016

TOTAL USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY 222586 222586 162763 59823

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 20 630 20 630 46 838 26 208

TOTAL REVENUES 59971387 59971387 58868849 1102538

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Cancellation of prior year encumbrances 90 356 90 356

Ilfi
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES 59971387 5997387 58959205 1012182
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SCHEDULE2

1of 2

TOWN OFBFTHEI CONN CTi T

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OFEXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED TUNE 30 2010

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Selectmen
Treasurer
Finance department
Town clerk
Assessor
Tax Collector

Legal department
Probate court

Data processing
Town insurance

Planning and zoning
Registrar of voters

Town boards and commissions
Parks and recreation

Employee benefits
Intergovernmental agency subsidies
Utilities chazges and services
Miscellaneous chazges
Senior center

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY

Building and inspection
Emergency management
Fire mazshal
Bethel fire department
Stony Hill fire department
Police department

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

HEALTH AND WELFARE

Social services
Health department

TOTAL HEALTHAND WELFARE

PUBLIC WORKS

Fleet maintenance
Public works administration
Highway department
Building maintenance
Tree warden

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

187187 192560 192560
6750 6742 6742

336216 336216 313038 23178
211832 200289 200289
185407 173831 173831
181525 170302 170302
176380 256260 256260
2650 5632 5632

134388 149132 149132
759699 740933 740933
201184 196781 196781
77486 71275 71275
08017 91644 91644
902166 925124 925124
4441154 4290854 4290854
383085 375585 374913 672
2115227 2008880 2008880
95574 333264 52809 280455

130 584 125 460 125 460

10636511 10650764 10346459 304305

206059 202761 202761
28500 13174 13174
86310 91777 91777
180200 177021 177021
140450 121121 121121
3455641 3437020 3437020

4097160 4042874 4042874

58188 56779 56779
260 711 249 623 249 623

318899 306402 306402

314751 326371 326371
297287 290714 290714
1549351 1541895 1541895
619564 639913 639913
84400 81995 81995

2865353 2880888 2880888

Continued
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TOWN OF BETHEL CONNECTICUT

GENERALFUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES CONCLUDED

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

LIBRARY 737 618 737 012 737 012

EDUCATION

Board of Education 36567417 36468958 35402558 1066400
Education maintenance 336 406 392 275 392 275

TOTAL EDUCATION 36 903 823 36 861 233 35 794 833 1 066 400

DEBT SERVICE 3 816 857 3 897 048 3 897 048

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 59376221 59376221 58005516 1370705

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out 595166 595166 595166

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES 59 971387 59971 387 58 600 682 1 370 705

Concluded
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Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular
purposes

BENNETT PROPERTY

This fund is used to account for the activities associated withthe care and maintenance of the Bennett Park Property

SMALL CITIES PROGRAM

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the Community Development Block Grant Program

HEALTH DEPARTMENT GRANTS

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the State of Connecticut Department of Health Grants

administered by the Bethel Health Department

PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the Drug Awareness Program Drug Enforcement

Program and the Police Equipment Grant

EDUCATION GRANTS

This fund is used to account for the activities of various State and Federal educational related grant programs primarily
those grants received from the State ofConnecticut Department of Education

SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the operations of the School Lunch Program

LIBRARY

This fund is used to account for the nontaxfunded activities ofthe Bethel Public Library

RAILROAD STATION

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the operation and maintenance ofthe railroad station

RAILROAD STATION RENOVATION

This fund is used to account for the renovation of the railroad station

0
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Nonmaior Governmental Funds Continued
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS CONTINUED

LAND ACQUISITION FUND

This fund is used to account for the proceeds from the sale of Town properties and the purchase of additional
properties

TEEN CENTER

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the Youth Commission programs

INSURANCE RESERVE

This fund is used to account for receipts from insurance companies and disbursements for insurance claims

P Z SERVICE FUND

This fund is used to account for the service fees collected by the Planning and Zoning Commission which are used to
pay the costs for professional service to assist the Commission

fir PARAMEDIC INTERCEPT

This fund is used to account for the service fees collected by ambulance services which are used to pay the cost of
k

those services

HISTORIC DOCUMENTS

This fund is used to account for fees collected by the TownClerk and related grants to preserve historic documents

DEBT SERVICE FUND

This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the a ent of lon term debtp yin g principal interest
and related costs

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital projects fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds

CAPITAL AND NONRECURRING

This fund is used to account for activities associated with major capital improvements and equipment purchased with
nonfinanced funding sources
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Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduciary fiznds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity for individuals private
organizations other governments andor other funds These include nonexpendable trust pension trust and

agency funds

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

TOWN EMPLOYEE PENSION FUND

To account for contributions made by the Town and its employees for pension benefits for all non

certified and nonpolice personnel

POLICE PENSION FUND

To account for contributions made by the Town and its employees for pension benefits for all uniformed

members of the Police Department

PRIVATEPURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

HENNESSEY SCHOLARSHIP FUND

To account for the initial restricted contribution and investment earnings which are used to provide
scholarships to eligible students as determined by the Board ofEducation

MENEGAY SCHOLARSHIP FUND

To account for the initial restricted contribution and partially restricted investment earnings which are

used to provide scholarships to eligible students as determined by the Board ofEducation

EDUCATION SCHOLARSHIPS

To account for the activities associated with the DeSantis Shaker and Henry Williams scholarship funds

administered by the Board ofEducation

AGENCY FUNDS

PERFORMANCE BONDS

To account for cash bonds and other cash and investments held by the Town to ensure compliance with

specifications and regulations with respect to various building projects and improvements

STUDENT ACTIVITIES

To account for various activities as defined by State Statutes undertaken by students ofthe public school

system

t
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SCHEDULER

TOWN OF BETHEL ONN TI T

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY I2009 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30 2010

ASSETS

CASH

Performance bonds
Flex benefit account

Student activities

TOTAL CASH

INVESTMENTS

Student activities

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
Performance bonds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

t
t

t

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Performance bonds
Flex benefit account

Student activities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

317726 22159 53868 26017
32306 123872 118142 38036
21253 813150 797504 36 899

371285 959181 469514 360952

525177 5568 519609

138808 28547 24644 142 711

1035270 987728 999726 1 023 272

456534 50706 78512 428728
32306 123872 118142 38036
546430 813150 803072 556508

1035270 987728 999726 1023272
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Statistical

Section

This part of the Townscomprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for

wr understanding what the information in the financial statements note disclosures and required supplementary
information says about the Townsoverall financial health

Contents

FINANCIAL TRENDS TABLES 1 4

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

Townsfinancial performance and wellbeing have changed over time

REVENUE CAPACITY TABLES 5 7

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Townsmost

significant local revenue source the property tax

DEBT CAPACITY TABLES 8 11

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of

the Towns current levels of outstanding debt and the Towns ability to issue

additional debt in the future

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION TABLES 12 13

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the Townsfinancial activities take place

OPERATING INFORMATION TABLES 14 16

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the Townsfinancial report relates to the

services the Town provides and the activities it performs

Sources Unless otherwise noted the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual

financial reports for the relevant year
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TABLE 11
1

TOWN OFBETHEL CONNECTICUT

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS

UNAUDITED

YEAR NET DEBT LEGAL TOTAL
ENDED DEBT APPLICABLE DEBT NET DEBT

JUNE 30 LIMIT TO LIMIT MARGIN APPLICABLE

2001 520431411 19148000 501283411 368

2002 565299519 30801706 534497813 545

2003 607358417 24899650 582458767 410

2004 639236364 23447931 615788433 367

2005 668599566 295192 7 639080349 442

2006 710447230 32449504 677997726 457

2007 750066089 30363791 719702298 405

2008 807852334 42039808 765812526 520

2009 814964232 41686187 773278045 512

2010 829365078 39081458 790283620 471
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